UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT S |
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK ‘

EON PITT, S _ - Civil Action No.:

Plaintiff, - |
VERIFIED COMPLAINT

T

CITY OF NEW YORK, P.O. MICHAEL MITCHELL, JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
“and JOHN DOES 1-5, . ( . ‘

— against —

Defendants.

Plaintiff Eon Pitt; by his attorney, Mark A. Mariﬁo, PC, for his Veriﬁ}ed Complaint
against Defendé.nt City of New York, Dcfendant P.O. Michael Mitchell, and Defendant John
Does 1-5, alleges, upbn personal knowledge and updn information and belief: |

o NATURE OF-THI.*} ACTION ‘v
i. On Januai*y 26,2014, at approximateiy 8:30 [;.m., Plaintiff Eon Pitt (“Plaintiff”)
Was arrested and detained by Defendaht P.O‘. Michael Mitchell (“Mitchell”) and Defendant John
- Does 1-5 (“John Does’;), members of the Ne?v York City Police Department (“NYPD”)
(collectively, the “Individual Defendants™), without probable cause, consent, or other
justification. The Individ_uai Defendants arrested Plaintiff and took him to thé NYPD’s 73rdv
Precinct for allegedly attemptirig to steal a car in a parking lot énd eventually sent h1m to central
booking to be arraigned. (These allegations, along with the allegations as further detailed below,
are hereinafter referred to,' coilectively, as the “Incident.”) |

2. All charges against Plaintiff were dismissed on or about September 24,2014.



3. Upon information and belief, Plaintiff was in police custody for approximately

twenty-one hours.

4.  Plaintiff had made approximately five court appearances before the charges were
dismissed.
5. Plaintiff lost several job opportunities because of the Incident. Defendants caused

injuries to Plaintiff, including loss of freedom, economic damages, and psychological injuries,

among other things.

PARTIES
6.' | Plaintiff is, and was at the time of the Incident, a resident of Kings County, State
of New York.
7. Defendant City of New Y;)rk is, and was at>the time of the Incident, a municipal

corporaﬁon duly organized under, and existing by virtue 6f, the laws of the State of New York;
| 8. Defendant Mitchell is, and was at the time of the Incident, an NYPD police |

officer with Shield Number 12463. Defendant MitchelI, upon information and belief, is a
member of one of the NYPD’s Brocl)klyn‘South'Units based out of the NYPD’s 63rd Precinct.

9. Upon information and belief, Defendant John Does aré, and were at the time of
the Incident, members of the NYPD based out of fhe NYPD’s 63rd Precinct. Defendant John
Does, upon information and belief, were members of one of the NYPD’s Brooklyn South Units
ai the time 6f the Incident. | )
10. At all relevant times, including, but not limited to, the time during whicﬁ the
Incident took place, all of the Individual Defendants were acting w1thm the scope of
employment.

11, Atall relevant times, including, but not limited to, the time during which the

Incident took place, all of the Individual Defer_ldanté were acting under color of state law.
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12 Deféndant City of New York and the Individual Defendants aré referred to herein,

‘collectively, as “Defendants.” |
| JURISDICTION AND VENUE

13. - This Court has original jurisdiction over the instant action, pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
| §§ 1331 and 1343,"' as this is a civil action asserting claims under the federal civil rights laws.

14.  Venue is proper, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391, as the events and transactions
giving risé to Plaiﬁtiff’ s claims occurred within this district (in Kings County).

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS -

15. At approximately 8:30 p.m. on January 26, 2014, Plaintiff was leaving work ‘at
Sprint mobile, located at in the Georgetown Shopping Center, located at 2143 Ralph Avenue (in
Kiggs_ County). | | |

16. | ‘Plai'htiff, an African-American male in his twenties, planned to drive his
girlfriend’s car home from work. - | |

17.  Plaintiff’s girlfriend had given him the car keys and consented to his driving the
car home from work.

18. As Plaiﬁtiff opened the door to his girifrieﬂd’s car, the Ihdividual Defendants
pulledupina poiice vehicle(s) and afreéted Pléinfiff for allcgédly trying to steal the car. |

19.  When Plaintiff asked for an explanation for the arrest, the Individual Defendants

|

told him an unbelievéble story. Upon information and belief, the Individual Defendants just
made it up out of thin air.
20.  Plaintiff’s relative, an acﬁvé NYPD sergeant, called the NYPD’s 73rd Precinct to

find out why Plaintiff was arrested. Upon information and belief, one of the Individual

Defendants repeated the incredible story' to Plaintiff’s relative.



21.  The car belonging to Plaintiff’s girlfriend was not stolen, and Plaintiff was not
attempting to steal it.
2. Updn information and belief, Defendant Mitchell was the arresting ofﬁcér and,
thus, he made the decision 'to“send Plaintiff to central booking for arraignment.
23. Neithe; Defendant Mitchell nor any of Defendant John Does had pfobable causé
61' other privilege to arrest Plaintiff and ultimately send him to central booking for arraignment.
24.  Each of the Individual Defendants knew that Plaintiff was being sent t_o. éentral
bdoking for arraignment without probable cause, consent, or other justification.
25.  Plaintiff was arraigned at approximately 5:30 p.m. on January 27, 2014.
26. Plaintiff was in the custody of the NYPD and/or New York City Department of
Correction (in central booking) for a total of appfoximatély twerity-one hours.
- 27.  The case was teﬁninated in Plaintiff’s favor on or about September 24, 2014.
28.  Plaintiff Went to court abpfoximately ﬁQé times to fight thesé baseless charges.
29. . Plaintiff lost sevei'al job opportunities b'eca.tuse'o-f the Incident. |
FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. 1983 - FALSE ARREST/FALSE IMPRISONMENT
As Against the Individual Defendants (Including Defendant Mitchell)
30.  Plaintiff repeats and réalleges each and every éllegation C(l)ntainedvih Paragraphs 1
through 29, 1nclus1vc as though fully set forth herein.
31. Under the Constitution of the United States of America and 42 U.S.C. 1983,
Plamtlff has the right to be free from unreasonable and illegal searches and selzures, including
false arrest and false 1mpnsonment

32.  One or more of the Individual Defendants, including, but not limited to,

Defendant Mitchell, violated Plaintiff’s rights when he/she/they intentionally arrested and



confined Plaintif, who was conscious at the titne, without'eonsent, justiﬁcation, privilege, ot -
probable cause.

33. The actions of one or more of the Individual Defendants,.including, but not-
limited to, Defendant Mitchell, caused injuries to Plaintiff, including loss of freedom, economic
damages, and i)sychoiogical injuries, among othei' things.

34, The Individual Defendants, including, but not limited to, Defendant Mitchell, took
the aforementioned actions against Plaintiff during the coui‘se, and within the scope, of
employment with the NYPD and Defendant City of New York. ”

35.  The Individual Defendants, including, but not limited to, Defendant Mitchell, |
were acting under color of state law at all times during the Incident.

' 36.  The actions taken by the Individual Defendants, including, but not linlited to, “

Defendant Mitchell, against Plaintiff were willful, wanton, reckless, and/or malicious, and
: therefore entitle iPlaintif'f to punitive damages in an amount to be determined at trial.

| | " SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. 1983 — FAILURE TO INTERVENE
As Agamst the John Doe Defendants
 37.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1

through 36, inclusive, as though fully set forth herein.

38. Under the Constitution of the Umted States: of America and 42 US.C. 1983
pohce officers have an afﬁrmatlve duty to protect the constltutlonal rights of citizens by
intervening when other police officers commit constitutional yiolations in their presence.

39.  One or more of the Individual Defendants violated Plaintiff’s conatitutional rights

when, in his/her/their presence, Defendant Mitchell (and other Defendant John Does) falsely

arrested and falsely imprisoned Plaintiff, yet did not intervene to protect Plaintiff.



40. The actions of one or more of the Individual Defendants caused injuries to
‘ vPilaintiff, including loss of freedom, economic damages, and psychological injuries, among other
things. |
| 41.  The Individual Defendants took the aforemeiltioned (in)actions against Plaintiff
during the course, and within the scope, of employment with the NYPD (and thus, Defendant
City vof New York). | |
42.  The Individual Defendants were acting under color of state law at all times during
. the Incident.

43. The (1n)act10ns taken by the Individual Defendants against Plaintiff were w111fu1
wanton, reckless, and/or mallcious ‘and therefore entitle Plamtlff to pumtive damages in an
amount to be determined at trial. |

| THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIER
VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. 1983 - MUNICIPAL LIABILITY
As Against Defendants

44, Plairitiff r’epeatsi and realléges eacii and every valle.gati(.)n‘ contained in Paragraphs 1
through 43, inclusive, as though fully set forth herein. |

45, NYPD police officers, such as the Individual Defendants, so often arrest a
“suspicicius” person and make up some reason for the arrest after the fact that it has become a de

| facto policy of the NYPD.

46.  The existence of the ébove-describéd unlawful and unconstitutional de faéto
policy and widespread custoni and practice is known to, encouraged, and C(indoned By
supervisory and policy-makirig ofﬁcers and ofﬁcials’ of the NYPD (and thus Defendant City of

New York).



47. Defendant City of New York has shoWﬁ a deliberate indifference towards citizens
with respect to the foregoing unconstitutional policy.'

48.  Plaintiff sustained injuries as a result of Defendant City of New York’s
unconstitutional policy, inéluding loss of freedom, economic damages, and psychological
injuries, among other things.

49, The aforementioned actions of the Individual Defendants resulted from, and were
taken pursuaﬁt to, the above-mentioned de facto policy énd/or well-settled and widespread
custom and practice of Defendant City of New York, which are implementcd by members of the
NYPD.

50. Ijefendant, City of New York is liable and responsible for all injuries resulting
from its deliberéte indifference to these unconstitutional practices. |

| DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
51. Plaihtiff demahds a trial by jury. |
WHEREFORE, plaintiff Eon Pitt réspectfully requests that this Court enter
Judgment in his favor andv against Defendants as follows: |

a. compensatory and punitive damages as against Defendants, jointly and severally,

ina combined amdun"c to be determined at tr‘iall;

b. | attqrney?s fees incurred during this action,’ pursuant to 42 USC 1988(b), the

determination of whicﬁ lies within the sound discretion of this Court;

c. costs incurred during this action? pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 1988(b), the determination

of whiéh lies {A(ithin the sound discretion of this Court;

d. expert fees incurred during this action, bpursuant to 42 U.S.C. 1988(c), the

determination of which lies within the sound discretion of this Court;



VERIFICATICN
STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF KINGS ) >
Eon Pitt héreby affirms, under {he penalties of perjury, to the following:
I have read the foregoing Verified Complaint and know the contents thereof aﬁd the same

is true to my knowledge, except as to the allegations based upon information and belief, and as to

those matters, I believe them to be true.

Date: July 2015 | %A

Nov (4. 20\5 , | /™ Eon Pitt Se

Sworn to and subsg¢ ibed be&)éeéne
. IS YOV EPA
this _i6}"" day of Fuly 2015,
- oy (4 OO

Notary Public

KAMAL P, SONI
Notary Public, State of New York
No. 01506089949
Qualified in Kings Coun
Commission Expires i/larch 31, 2019



